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Stovel and Associates Inc. 
Planners, Agrologists and Environmental Consultants

August 19, 2023

Via Email 
 
Mr. David Stubbs 
Municipal Services Office – Western Ontario 
659 Exeter Road, Floor 2 
London, Ontario 
N6E 1L3 
David.Stubbs@Ontario.ca 

RE: Amendment to County of Haldimand Official Plan – 1320-HC-22-OPA-Phase 2 
ERO No. 019-6038 
  
Stovel and Associates Inc. (“SAI”) was retained by Greenhorizons Group of Companies 
(“Greenhorizons”) to review the proposed amendment to the County of Haldimand Official Plan. 
Greenhorizons owns 122.3 ha (302.2 ac) in the County of Haldimand of which 64.5 ha (160 ac) 
was recently included in the Urban Boundary of Caledonia (Map 1).  These lands form part of the 
North Caledonia Employment Area. These lands are clearly intended and needed to provide 
employment opportunities in the County of Haldimand.  
 
SAI reviewed 1320-HC-22-OPA-Phase 2. 
 
Our concerns are as follows: 
 

1. Unevaluated Wetlands should not form part of the Natural Heritage System and 
should not be considered a Significant Natural Area. The County has relied, in part, 
on mapping prepared by the Grand River Conservation Authority (“GRCA”) to identify 
unevaluated wetlands. It is our respectful opinion that the GRCA does not have the 
mandate to identify and evaluate wetlands for the purposes of Natural Heritage planning. 
Of note, the criteria used by the GRCA are not the same as the evaluation system 
employed by the Province of Ontario. Many of the GRCA unevaluated wetlands are too 
small to be evaluated under the Ontario Wetland Evaluation System (OWES). Several of 
these “unevaluated wetlands” are part of the agricultural landscape and/or recreational 
ponds that were dug by the former landowner. Recent changes to the “complexing” 
guidelines mean that these small features will not be included in larger significant 
wetlands. This issue will be compounded if the County of Haldimand includes unevaluated 
wetlands (and ponds) in the Natural Heritage System and gives the same weight of 
significance as a Provincially Significant Wetland or a Local Significant Wetland that was 
evaluated by the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry under the OWES.  

 
 We ask that Section A. Natural Environment Policies be amended by 

removing the reference to unevaluated wetlands. The relevant mapping 
schedules should be modified to reflect this change. We have included the 
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relevant pages of 1320-HC-22-OPA that will be affected by this change (see 
attachment).

2. Plantations planted under the Woodlot Improvement Act (WIA) or managed as part 
of the Managed Forest Tax Incentive Program should not be considered Significant 
Woodland. The background report prepared by the private consultant notes that “A 
plantation established and continuously managed for the sole purpose of complete 
removal at rotation, as demonstrated with documentation acceptable to the planning 
authority or NDMNRF, without a forest restoration objective” would be an exception to the 
significant woodland criteria.”  

However, my client owns a property with a WIA plantation that has been mapped as 
significant woodland. 

We ask that this plantation be removed from the mapping of Significant 
Natural Environment Area Features (Schedule A-8) and page 92 of the 
document be revised to note this exception. 

We have provided attachments to illustrate the proposed policy change and an excerpt from the 
Haldimand County Natural Heritage System Study (highlighted portions that address exceptions 
related to plantations) to note the exception. We specifically request that the plantation located 
on 665 Highway 6 (Sen. Range 1, WPR E, half part lot 6) not be included as a significant woodland 
or part of the Natural Heritage System. We have also included a copy of the Woodlot Improvement 
Agreement, dated November 1, 1987 which is a prior program related to the current Managed 
Forest Tax Incentive Program. This plantation will be removed and used for lumber as was 
originally intended. Following the harvest, the plantation will be used for Employment Lands to 
create valuable jobs.

Greenhorizons wants to invest in the community of Caledonia by developing appropriate industrial
and mixed industrial/commercial uses in the North Caledonia Employment Area. The result of this 
development will be more jobs for the community and more taxes for the local government. With 
the requested changes to 1320-HC-22-OPA- Phase 2, we feel that Greenhorizons will be better 
position to create a viable development plan. My client wants to start construction as soon as 
possible and has completed their first pre-consultation session (to develop terms of reference for
technical studies). 

Please feel free to contact me should you wish to further discuss the above matter. 

Yours truly, 

Robert P. Stovel, M.Sc., M.C.I.P., R.P.P.

cc.  Steve Schiedel, Greenhorizons





 



 (but not including
unevaluated

wetlands or ponds)

*

*Plantations planted under the Woodlot Improvement Act (WIA) or managed as part of the
Managed Forest Tax Incentive Program should not be considered a Significant Woodland.
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